
 

Newnan City Council Meeting 
MARCH 28, 2023 

Newnan City Hall 
Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers 

25 LaGrange Street 
6:30 PM 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

INVOCATION 

READING OF MINUTES 

A. Minutes from the Special Called Meeting on February 22, 2023 

B. Minutes from the Regular Meeting on March 14, 2023 

REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

C. 1 Appointment - Cultural Arts Commission, 3 year term 

D. 1 Appointment - Keep Newnan Beautiful, interim term until 8/1/24 

E. 1 Appointment - Parks Commission, 3 year term 

F. 1 Appointment - Tree Commission, 3 year term 

G. 1 Appointment - Newnan Youth Activities, 3 year term 

REPORTS ON OPERATIONS BY CITY MANAGER 

REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR 

NEW BUSINESS 

H. Public Hearing - Request by owner to demolish 282 Greenville Street 

I. Consideration of Contract for C. Jay Smith Slide Slope Repairs 

J. Consideration of Contract Award for Design Services for the Preservation and Improvement of 
the Farmer Street Cemetery 

K. Consideration of a Contract Extension for Debris Removal Services 

L. Consideration of a Contract Extension for Debris Monitoring, Disaster Recovery and Emergency 
Planning Services 

M. Consideration of a Contract Extension for Consulting Services for Disaster Recovery and FEMA 
Public Assistance 

N. Proposal to Repair and Maintain erosion at 57 East    

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

O. Public Hearing - 31 Jones St - Resolution to Repair or Demolish 

P. Recommendation Regarding the Public Sale of 66 1st Avenue and 10 Buchanan Street.    

Q. Report on Annexation and Development Planning - Action Item Requested at City Council 2022 
Retreat 

 

1



NEWNAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA – March 28, 2023 @ 6:30 PM ............................... Page 2 

R. Ordinances to Amend the Charter of the City of Newnan and Code of Ordinances for the 
Purpose of Redistricting 

1. 2nd and Final Reading – Ordinance to Amend the Charter of the City of Newnan for the 
Purpose of Redistricting 

2. Consideration of Ordinance to Amend the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 2, Administration for 
the Purpose of Redistricting 

VISITORS, PETITIONS, COMMUNICATIONS & COMPLAINTS 

S. Request to Close Fresh Bru Dr. for Remote Control Car Events, April 1st & 2nd and April 22nd 
& 23rd 

T. Request from Explore Newnan-Coweta and Newnan-Coweta Chamber of Commerce to use the 
City Trolley on April 11th 

MOTION TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

U. Motion to Enter into Executive Session 

ADJOURNMENT 

2



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
SPECIAL CALLED MEETING                                                      FEBRUARY 22, 2023   

The special called meeting of the City Council of the City of Newnan, Georgia was held on 
Tuesday, February 22, 2023 at 5:30PM in the Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers of City 
Hall with Mayor Keith Brady presiding.  
 
Present 
 
Mayor Keith Brady: Council members present: Ray DuBose, Rhodes Shell, George 
Alexander, Cynthia Jenkins, Dustin Koritko and Paul Guillaume. Also present:  City 
Manager, Cleatus Phillips; Assistant City Manager, Hasco Craver; City Clerk, Megan Shea 
and City Attorney, Brad Sears 
       
Call to Order 
 
Mayor Brady called the meeting to order and delivered the invocation.  
 
Presentation from Development Partners for 57 East Project 
 
Doug Davidson started the presentation. He explained that they are at the end of the due 
diligence period and wanted to provide an update. He introduced the members of the 
team that were present. He explained that they were tasked with conducting civic and 
community engagement sessions, identify parcels for best use and components, develop 
a preliminary concept plan and financial proformas that work the best for the City.  
 
There were 3 community events held and they met with several civic associations. They 
also hired a market research company and worked with Nelson Worldwide for the concept 
plan and put together a timeline on where to go from here.  
 
Dave Dugolenski with the development team stated that this is just step 1 in the process. 
There are significant obstacles out there especially with interest rates rising, making 
construction debt expensive. They really tried to focus on the strengths of this asset and 
looked at many different options. Each option would probably require some level of public 
subsidy given today’s market. They evaluated residential, commercial, retail, hospitality 
and creative work space.  
 
Randy Beavers with the development team started by discussing the community 
engagement sessions. They heard a lot of input and the meetings were well attended. The 
first meeting was with the Downtown Development Authority, the second was with civic 
leadership and special interest groups and the third was with the general public. Some of 
the high points were to embrace what Newnan is today and respect its history/character 
and should integrate well with the downtown. A lot of feedback regarding apartments was 
not for or against but wanting what apartments would bring such as food/beverage and 
public spaces. Other common themes included market/grocer, wellness uses, community 
space and collaboration with the City and Mainstreet. Hotel use was brought up and 
debated but with that parking and grid impacts should be well thought out.  
 

3



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
SPECIAL CALLED MEETING                                                      FEBRUARY 22, 2023   

The goal was to integrate all of the feedback into the site plan. They looked at the physical 
site constraints and what apartments would look like in different ways. Can they afford to 
incorporate all the uses that were heard from the community into this? Mr. Beavers went 
through the key takeaways from each meeting, many of the same themes and some 
differences in preferred land uses.  
 
Councilman Alexander mentioned that he attended all community sessions and on the 
subject of apartments he heard overwhelmingly people were against apartments. Mr. 
Beavers said in the last session there were 2 residents very opposed to apartments but 
many others were for the amenities that apartments bring.  
 
Councilman Koritko asked what condo quality apartments mean? Mr. Beavers stated that 
was a comment that was taken from one of the meetings. There was a discussion around 
having higher quality construction.  
 
Chris Hall, Real Estate Consultant with Haddow & Company, went over the market study 
that was completed. For this they look at demographic data, survey apartments and talk to 
brokers. They also look at what has worked well in other downtowns. Downtown Newnan 
is very vibrant and there is not a lot of vacancy. There is a strong retail market. They 
looked at some of the newer apartment communities which have high occupancy and 
strong rents with a mix of tenants such as empty nesters, young professionals and some 
families.  
 
Conclusions that came from their study were that there is a market opportunity for 
apartments and a key ingredient for a successful downtown. The market would also 
support for-sale townhomes. There is an opportunity for coworking/flex office building. The 
site could definitely support retail and restaurants such as a micro food hall. There is 
potential for a hotel but that would need to be further investigated.  
 
Mr. Hall went into more detail with each component. He stated that for retail soft goods 
should not be pursued because the square already has that. He showed an example of a 
coworking space. Mayor Brady asked if that would be ground level? Mr. Hall said it could 
be ground or second floor. It could be all on one level, about 7,500 sq ft. Councilman 
DuBose mentioned an interest for children’s healthcare being looked at as well.  
 
Mr. Hall discussed the hotel opportunity. He explained that most hotels in a downtown 
area require public subsidy. Parking would also need to be considered with this.  
 
Councilwoman Jenkins asked if they looked at small business incubator as a viable option 
and tech businesses? Mr. Hall said maybe in conjunction with a coworking option. Cities 
have sponsored incubators in other downtowns so it could be considered. He stated a big 
tech company would not be drawn to this site but possibly smaller start-ups would be an 
option.  
 

4



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
SPECIAL CALLED MEETING                                                      FEBRUARY 22, 2023   

Mr. Dugolenski also stated that there has been a downsizing in tech, for example 
Microsoft just pulled out of their campus in Atlanta. Incubators are usually start-ups and 
need to be subsidized.  
 
Mayor Brady asked if meeting space would be incorporated in the hotel? Mr. Dugolenski 
stated that they evaluated different concepts but in the community sessions they heard 
people want a boutique hotel. Meeting space is usually undersized in that type of hotel. 
Josh Magaro explained that they relied on the hotel study done last year for Explore 
Newnan-Coweta which concluded this was not the proper location for a full-service hotel.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Koritko asked for further clarification regarding whether the hotel is 
preferred or not and other options for offsite parking and being pedestrian only. Mr. 
Magaro said they looked at the market study and the community sessions and it was 
preferred by the community based on feedback. He said they did look at offsite parking 
but to adhere to zoning requirements in the City a no parking option was not explored.  
 
Councilman DuBose asked about the potential for government uses? Mr. Magaro said that 
would be a welcome use and would help with financing.  
 
Jeremy Hall with Nelson Worldwide, discussed the architectural concept plans. He 
showed images looking into the site from Broad St, greenspace inside surrounded by 
townhomes and retail/restaurants with outdoor patio seating. He also showed a base 
concept plan of the whole site. Spring Street would be extended from the west and the 
LINC trail would extend in from the East. A second option broke the residential into two 
blocks and moving the greenspace closer to the railroad. Another option showed the hotel 
instead of townhomes.  
 
Councilman Guillaume asked if the number of apartments are standard in all options and 
where the offsite parking would be? Mr. Hall said yes with there being slightly less 
apartments with the hotel option. The offsite parking could be across the street, just to 
show that something would need to be within a block or two. Mr. Beavers said that they 
are trying to understand the constraints of the site and there are assumptions they can’t 
make and the offsite parking is a big one.  
 
Councilwoman Jenkins said that the plans do a great job addressing E. Broad Street but 
the other 3 sides seem to be turned away. Salbide looks like the back of the site and 
needs to be addressed with the same detail as the front side. She also commented that 
the northwest corner is the historic black business district and there is an opportunity to 
connect that, as well as what will be the Bicentennial Park. She then commented that she 
would like to see more originality with the masking, something more Newnan.  
 
Councilman DuBose commented that he likes the Spring St. entrance that is incorporated 
but there is also an opportunity for a north entrance to connect Andrew St. Mr. Hall said 
they would like to explore those options if they can work.  
 

5



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
SPECIAL CALLED MEETING                                                      FEBRUARY 22, 2023   

Councilman Alexander expressed concern regarding the number of townhomes verse 
apartments, as well as agreeing that the back side/south side should be looked at and 
made to look more attractive.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Koritko asked about rooftop utilization and parking spaces. Mr. Hall said 
there is potential for rooftop patios and other uses. There is on street parking on E. Broad 
and about 80 parking spaces on the street within the site then the parking deck so max 
parking would be about 445 spaces. Mayor Pro Tem Koritko expressed disappointment in 
the creativity and the apartments overwhelming the site.  
 
Josh Magaro gave details of the project schedule and financial feasibility. The next phase 
would be design/development, taking feedback from Council and having further 
conversations to refine all the details and come up with final use. Then a rezoning, 
planning commission and other Council approvals. From there the architect would do a full 
design set followed by pre-leasing and finance efforts and then construction efforts.  
 
Mr. Magaro gave a breakdown of the financials including what they see for residential and 
commercial, gross potential income and operating expenses, leading to about $3.5 million 
in net operating income. The project overall will be costly and they estimate an all-in cost 
of construction at $83-84 million. The return on cost would be 4.2% which is not very 
good. Based on all of this, the project doesn’t work today.  
 
Looking ahead to 2024 and 2025 there are a few variables. Following financial trends, the 
hope is to catch a good time to get the project off the ground. The project would need to 
be at a 6.5% or better for return on cost to be feasible. They looked at the lowest hanging 
subsidy whether hotel or multi-family. The only subsidy to ask for would be the land to get 
this going and then there is a positive delta to roc.  
 
Mayor Brady stated that this is the first part of the conversation and Newnan is unlike 
others on the south side of Atlanta. It’s going to be a lot of work to get it done but it is 
worthy. Mr. Davidson said they looked to merge good uses of the property and weighing 
the subsidies that might be required for that.  
 
Mr. Phillips suggested that Council should come together and determine what the City’s 
threshold of investment will be. That needs to be provided to the development partners 
before anything else happens. Mr. Phillips asked what the proforma would look like with 
no multi-family. Mr. Magaro answered that it’s dependent on the level of subsidy and what 
is wanted.  
 
Councilman Guillaume suggested scheduling meetings to discuss this further. Mayor 
Brady asked Council to come calendars to the regular scheduled meeting next week and 
a schedule can be determined.  
 
Mr. Davidson reiterated that the multi-family subsidizes for the green space and other 
components, just to keep that in mind. He stated that they will be the ones developing. 
The only part possibly parceled out would be the hotel. Mr. Magaro stated that some level 

6



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
SPECIAL CALLED MEETING                                                      FEBRUARY 22, 2023   

of public subsidy will be needed. A credit worthy tenant such as government would 
provide a level of insurance because they won’t default. Mayor Brady asked about taxable 
districts or bonded indebtedness. Mr. Magaro said once the City gives them the program 
then they can give total development costs. There are many options for financing 
solutions. Every city/county/state has a different toolbox to incentivize these types of 
developments. The financing picture shown so far has not factored any of that in. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Councilman Guillaume to adjourn the 
meeting at 7:18PM.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     
___________________      _________________ 
Megan Shea, City Clerk      Keith Brady, Mayor 
    

7



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                              MARCH 14, 2023_   

The regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Newnan, Georgia was held on 
Tuesday, March 14, 2023 at 2:30 p.m. in the Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers of City 
Hall with Mayor Keith Brady presiding.  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Brady called the meeting to order and delivered the invocation. 
  
PRESENT 
 
Mayor Keith Brady: Council members present:  Ray DuBose, Rhodes Shell, George 
Alexander, Cynthia Jenkins, Dustin Koritko and Paul Guillaume. Also present:  City 
Manager, Cleatus Phillips; City Clerk, Megan Shea and City Attorney, Brad Sears.   
 
A. MINUTES 
     
Motion by Councilman DuBose, seconded by Councilman Alexander to dispense with the 
reading of the minutes of the Regular Council meeting on February 28, 2023 and adopt 
them as presented.  
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 
B.  APPOINTMENT – CULTURAL ARTS COMMISSION, 3 YEAR TERM 
 
 Continue to next agenda.  
      
C.  APPOINTMENT – KEEP NEWNAN BEAUTIFUL, INTERIM APPOINTMENT 
 
Continue to next agenda.  
 
D.  APPOINTMENTS – PARKS COMMISSION, 3 YEAR TERMS 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Koritko, seconded by Councilman Alexander to appoint Jason 
Lucas for a 3-year term.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
Continue Mayor Brady’s appointment to the next agenda.  
 
E.  APPOINTMENTS – TREE COMMISSION, 3 YEAR TERMS 
 
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Koritko to appoint Jennifer 
Petrino for a 3-year term. 
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 

8



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                              MARCH 14, 2023_   

Continue Mayor Pro Tem Koritko’s appointment to the next agenda.  
 
F. APPOINTMENT – NEWNAN YOUTH ACTIVITIES, 3 YEAR TERM 
 
Continue to next agenda.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
G. PUBLIC HEARING- APPLICATION FOR ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE – LINE 
CREEK BREWING CO. DBA THE RESERVE 
 
Mayor Brady opened a public hearing on the application for Microbrewery (Beer) for Line 
Creek Brewing Co. dba The Reserve at 18 Savannah St.   
 
A representative of applicant was present for the hearing. No one spoke for or against the 
application.  Mayor Brady closed the public hearing.  The City Clerk advised that all the 
documentation had been received and everything was in order. 
 
Motion by Councilman DuBose, seconded by Councilman Guillaume to approve the 
application for Microbrewery (Beer) as presented.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
H.  REZONING REQUEST RZ2023-01 BY FREEDOM LAND HOLDINGS, LLC FOR 5.82 
+ ACRES AT OLD ATLANTA HIGHWAY (TAX PARCEL #073C 044 AND 073C 045); 
REQUESTED ZONING FROM PDC AND PDO TO PDR FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
CONSTRUCTING 36 TOWNHOUSE-STYLE CONDOMINIUMS – FOR INFORMATION 
ONLY 
 
Mayor Brady recused himself due to a business relationship and Mayor Pro Tem Koritko 
read the item. No action at this time.  
 
I.  FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CHARTER OF THE CITY OF 
NEWNAN FOR THE PURPOSE OF REDISTRICTING  
 
City Manager explained that this is straightforward. When changes are made for 
redistricting an amendment to the charter is required. It is also required to have two 
readings regardless of votes. The second reading will be next meeting and will also 
include a code of ordinance amendment for the districts. That will finalize the redistricting 
process. Mayor Brady stated this is not a public hearing but if anyone wanted to comment 
they could and no one came forward.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Koritko asked to make sure this does not have to go to state legislature? 
City Attorney stated that is correct but it will be filed with the Superior Court Clerk and 
Secretary of State.  
 

9



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                              MARCH 14, 2023_   

Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Councilman Guillaume to adopt the ordinance 
as presented. 2nd and Final Reading next agenda.  
 

MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
J.  CONSIDERATION FOR NEGOTIATIONS OF CONTRACT SCOPE, PRICING AND 
FINAL CONTRACT COSTS FOR LYNCH PARK POOL REPAIRS AND MECHANICAL 
ROOM UPGRADES 
 
Facilities Maintenance Director, Mark Johnston, explained that this is to recommend a 
contract with S.H. Creel Contracting for the improvements at Lynch Park, in the amount of 
$158,089.56.  
 
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Councilwoman Jenkins to approve as 
presented.                      
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
K. CONSIDERATION OF CONTRACT AWARD FOR AUDIO/VISUAL AND CAT 
SERVICES FOR THE FIRE TRAINING FACILITY PROJECT 
 
Assistant City Manager, Hasco Craver, explained that this is part of the already approved 
budget, which allocated $100,000 for furniture, fixtures and equipment (FFE). Bids were 
received for AV systems in the classrooms at the fire training facility. It is recommended to 
go with Soluntionz. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Koritko asked about a $500 permit fee showing on the master summary. 
Mr. Craver stated there will not be a permit fee but they will be required to secure a permit 
for the work.  
 
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Councilman Shell to approve the 
agreement as presented.   

MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
L. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION FOR PERSONNEL POLICY REVISION 
CHANGING PAY PERIODS 
 
City Manager asked HR Director Nanette Freeman and Finance Director Nicole Hall to 
join him to go over this. He explained that the next two items go together. They are a 
result of changing the pay period. Currently the pay period runs Thursday – Wednesday 
and that only leaves a day to get ACH file to the bank. The first item is to amend the HR 
Personnel Policy as the pay period is stated in it.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Koritko asked why the new pay period will start Monday instead of 
Sunday? Ms. Hall stated that this coincides with the fire department schedules and gives 3 
days for any corrections.  
 

10



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                              MARCH 14, 2023_   

Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Councilman Alexander to amend the personnel 
policy as presented.  
     MOTION CARRIED.  (7-0)  
 
M. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION TO ADVANCE CITY EMPLOYEES UP TO 
THIRTY (30) HOURS AS A RESULT OF THE CHANGING PAY PERIODS 
 
Mr. Phillips said this is a bit complicated to explain. The first pay period will be short 3 
days and we don’t want employees accustomed to a full paycheck to be short. The checks 
would not catch up the 3 days until the end of employment. The request is to advance the 
employees the 3 days. There are no budget implications as the full year of payroll is 
already budgeted. Staff has looked at ways for this to be paid back and are asking to 
credit the employees if they work at least 1 year after the advancement. Mr. Phillips said 
the City is also switching to a payroll processor called PayCom.  
 
Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Councilwoman Jenkins to adopt the resolution 
as presented.    

MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
N. REQUEST TO DECLARE TWO (2) CITY OWNED PROPERTIES AS SURPLUS AND 
SELL AT PUBLIC AUCTION 
 
Visitor wanted to speak to this item. Ms. Debbie Vines explained that these properties 
border her property. She only found out about this and wants to understand the process. 
She asked for a delay on this so she has time to speak to her attorney and look into the 
process.  
 
City Attorney explained that these properties were purchased by Newnan Water & Light in 
the early 1900’s. The process can either be to auction off on the courthouse steps or to be 
sold by sealed bid. The City has used both processes but most recently it was sealed bid. 
Staff will determine which process is best.  
 
Mr. Phillips said that today is just to authorize the process to start. There is still work that 
staff needs to do. In the past some properties have been offered to adjoining property 
owners depending on factors. Newnan Utilities has determined there is no use for the 
property.  
 
Ms. Vines asked about the sealed bid process. Mayor Brady stated that a date and time is 
determined for the bids to be delivered to the City Manager’s office and then two council 
members open the bids publicly and typically the highest or best bid is awarded. This will 
be brought back to Council at the next meeting and there will be more information at that 
time. Ms. Vines expressed concern about a neighbor.  
 
Councilman Shell as what the timeframe would be? Ms. Sears said staff would have 2 
weeks to come back with a recommendation then with required advertisements it could 
end up being 6 – 8 weeks total.  

11



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                              MARCH 14, 2023_   

Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Councilman Shell to declare the 
properties as surplus and begin the process of public auction.   
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
O. CONSIDERATION OF PARKING RESTRICTION ORDINANCE FOR TWO STREETS 
IN THE STONEBRIDGE SUBDIVISION 
 
Ray Norton, Public Works Director explained that two streets have alleys that service 
townhomes in the subdivision. People park cars in the street and this is causing issues for 
garbage pickup. The request is to restrict parking on Wednesdays so garbage pickup is 
not interrupted.  
 
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Councilman Shell to grant the request as 
presented.  
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
P. CONSIDERATION OF RATIFICATION FOR THE EMERGENCY CULVERT REPAIR 
ON NEWNAN CROSSING BLVD EAST 
 
Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Councilman Alexander to approve the 
ratification.  
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
Q.  21 BERRY AVE – OWNER UPDATE AND REQUEST EXTENSION 
 
Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer, stated that this property was before Council in 
September 2022 and 180 days was given then. There has been a lot of work done on the 
property, new roof, siding and windows. The property is secured and being kept clean.  
 
Douglas Calderon, Owner, said they are in the stages of waiting for an electrician and 
then plumbing which will complete the inside of the house.  
 
Councilwoman Jenkins commented that spring is coming and, in the past, the overgrown 
grass has been a major issue. Mr. Calderon said it will be addressed.  
 
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Councilwoman Guillaume to approve the 
180-day extension 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                              MARCH 14, 2023_   

R.  DISCUSSION OF ZONING REGULATION TEXT AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLES 2 & 
4 
 
Dean Smith, Senior Planner, stated that at the last meeting there was discussion about 
various processes and what should go before Council. A few things have been tweaked 
since last meeting. First, Mr. Smith recommended that townhouses in RU-I be left as it is, 
as an allowed use. The City Manager mentioned last meeting that there are already lot 
requirements for those. The second recommendation is to change duplexes to an allowed 
use, continuing to allow for diverse housing products.  
 
For Article 4, group development, last meeting it was recommended to delete that entirely 
and staff does agree. Staff would like to come back to Council with an amendment to 
remove that. There are other ordinances that can help address these types of 
developments.  
 
Councilwoman Jenkins asked for examples of group development? Mr. Smith stated 
Ashley Park and the Walmart Shopping Center. City Manager explained that it’s been a 
way that commercial developments have been able to subdivide those boxes without road 
frontage to secure individual financing. Lately, the build to rent subdivisions have been 
using it to circumvent the subdivision regulations. Councilwoman Jenkins asked if there 
could be consequences now for commercial developments? Mr. Smith stated there could 
be and so the residential component could be removed.  
 
Councilman DuBose asked if this would affect the townhouse development going in on 
Sprayberry Road? Mr. Smith said no, as it is already under construction and was rezoned 
under RU-7. City Manager commented that with all the build to rent regulations being 
discussed in the General Assembly, it should be clear that we are not trying to regulate 
them but we want to ensure they are being designed per our fee-simple standards.  
 
No action needed. This will come back to Council in April.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
S.  2ND AND FINAL READING – ORDINANCE TO ANNEX 31.79 + ACRES AT 521 
LOWER FAYETTEVILLE RD AND ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP FOR 
PDR ZONING 
 
Mayor Brady recused himself due to a business relationship. Mayor Pro Tem Koritko read 
the item.  
 
Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Councilman Guillaume to adopt the ordinance 
for annexation as presented. Opposed: Jenkins, Koritko 
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (4-2) 
 

13



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                              MARCH 14, 2023_   

Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Councilman Guillaume to adopt the ordinance 
for rezoning as presented. Opposed: Jenkins, Koritko 
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (4-2) 
 
T.  2ND AND FINAL READING – ORDINANCE TO AMEND CONDITIONS OF ZONING 
AND AMENDMENT TO MASTER PLAN FOR 42.20 + ACRES ON POPLAR RD.  
 
Councilman Guillaume asked the developer about a comment made at the last meeting 
regarding private security. He asked if this is something that will be provided for the 
development?  
 
Mr. Tom Barranco with Pope & Land said he believes the security is a market demand 
and this will be built in phases. They will entertain private security but there are multiple 
components and this can be addressed in the development agreement. Mayor Pro Tem 
Koritko asked for more of a definitive commitment. Mr. Barranco said they could commit to 
private security upon completion of the development.  
 
Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Councilman DuBose to adopt the ordinance 
and amendment as presented. Opposed: Alexander, Koritko 
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (5-2) 
 
VISITORS, PETITIONS, COMMUNICATIONS & COMPLAINTS 
 
U.  REQUEST FROM BIKE COWETA FOR A SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT FOR THE 
ROCK & ROAD FESTIVAL ON APRIL 15TH 
 
Chris Doane was there for the request. Councilman Alexander asked about the reserved 
parking spaces? Mr. Doane said that was previously approved, securing all of the spaces 
for the crit and then each restaurant would reserve their own space in front of them. 
People can stand in the space or the restaurant can utilize it for serving. It’s basically 
extending a temporary patio into that space. Mayor Brady stated there is precedent for this 
as restaurants were allowed to do this during COVID.  
 
Councilman Alexander then asked about access to Murphy’s Florist as this event is the 
same day as prom. City Manager said there has been a lot of conversation with Murphy’s 
about this. The City has offered to reserve some spaces in the parking lot across from 
them on Spring St. and people will be able to cross the street. Murphy’s closes at noon 
that day and street closures will start at 11am.  
 
Council asked questions about the logistics for the event. Mr. Doane said the event wraps 
up around 9pm and then there will be clean up time needed, which may take an hour or 
two. Mr. Norton said they will start the cleanup process at 9 but they won’t open the 
streets until all the garbage has been picked up. There has already been an article in the 
newspaper and most downtown merchants are aware already and there will be other 

14



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                              MARCH 14, 2023_   

follow up with an official notice. Crowds may be similar to the Taste of Newnan, around 
5,000.  
 
Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Councilwoman Jenkins to approve the request 
as presented.  
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
   
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Koritko to adjourn the 
Council meeting at 3:20pm.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________      _________________ 
Megan Shea, City Clerk      Keith Brady, Mayor 
    

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



 

City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 

Date: March 28, 2023 

Agenda Item: Consideration of Contract for C. Jay Smith Slide Slope Repairs 

Prepared By: Ronda Helton, Program Manager 
Hasco Craver, Assistant City Manager 

  
Presented 
By: 

 
Hasco Craver, Assistant City Manager 

 

 
Purpose:  
 
Newnan City Council may consider a contract to make certain repairs to a slope at C. Jay Smith Park.   
 
Background:  
 
The redevelopment of C. Jay Smith Park was completed in the summer of 2021, utilizing SPLOST 2019 
funds. In part, the redevelopment project included the installation of 30’ slides built into an existing 
slope below and adjacent to the existing playground near the corner of Farmer Street and Glenn Street.   
 
Artificial turf was installed between the 2 slides to create an area in which park patrons may use to 
traverse the slope.  The turf, as well as the earthen areas outside of the slides, due to increased usage 
and stormwater erosion have deteriorated to a point in which City staff engaged an outfit to find a more 
permanent solution. 
 
Numerous treatments were considered: planting of softscape improvements, placement of rock, 
installation of artificial turf throughout the general area and the removal of the slides. 
 
It was agreed upon that due to the popularity of the slides, that city staff shall find a treatment to allow 
the slides to remain while concurrently creating a lasting condition for adjacent areas.  Therefore, and 
after great research, city staff found a solution that includes the use of shotcrete, which is concrete or 
mortar conveyed through a hose and pneumatically projected at high velocity onto a surface.  Upon the 
setting/curing of the shotcrete, a poured-in-place rubber surface will be adhered to the surface, creating 
a safe and long-lasting material that may be enjoyed by park users for years to come.   
 
It is important to note that city staff is asking for the Newnan City Council to consider utilizing a 
cooperative purchasing method for procurement.  More specifically, the City of Newnan is a registered 
agency that may utilize the already competitively bid contracts, vendors, etc. made available through 
Sourcewell.  Sourcewell’s solicitation process meets and oftentimes exceeds the city’s procurement 
policy.   
 
Funding:  
 
SPLOST 2019 
 
Attachments:  

28



 
1. Playworld Quote, dated March 13, 2023 

 
Recommendation:  
 
It is the recommendation of city staff that the Newnan City Council authorize the contract with 
Playworld (Division of Power Play) through the cooperative purchasing service in an amount of 
$263,868.00. 
 
Previous Discussion with Council:  
 
Newnan City Council has not had conversations related to the specific treatment of the existing slope.  
However, members of the Council remain engaged and active as it relates to the development, 
improvement, utilization and promotion of C. Jay Smith Park. 
 

29



Q U O T E
Date Quote #

3/13/2023 PWCQ21531P: 1-800-459-7241   F: 704-584-1034

Quote valid for 30 days.

Bill To: Site/End User: Ship To:

C J ParkCity of Newnan C J Park

Ronda Helton Ronda Helton Ronda Helton
25 Lagrange Street
Newnan, Ga 30563

92 Farmer Street
Newnan, Ga 30263

92 Farmer Street
Newnan, Ga 30263

P: (678) 673-5479 P: (678) 673-5479 P: (678) 673-5479
F: (770) 254-2361 F: (770) 254-2361 F: (770) 254-2361

rhelton@cityofnewnan.org rhelton@cityofnewnan.org rhelton@cityofnewnan.org

50% Deposit Required. 
See Terms and Conditions

Ship Via Sales Representative Prepared By

BEST METHOD Carlton Burr Carlton Burr

Qty Item # Description Unit Price Ext. Price

 Surfacing for the hill slide

 1  $14,133.00  $14,133.00Removal Removal of existing surfacing.

Remove approx 100' of existing plastic playground
border. 
Remove approx 80' of 6x6 treated timbers.
Install approx 180' of 12' Rubber curb (border).
Removal of approx 800 sq ft artificial turf to allow for
resurfacing of slope.
Removal of approx 700 sq ft  of bonded rubber surfacing.
Installation of approx 150' of 4" sock drain pipe on upper
side of newly installed rubber curb (above). Within rubber
curbs and daylighted outside both ends. Existing mulch
will be raked back to accommodate.
Drain system will consist of 4" corrugated pipe installed
in trench approx 12" deep. #57 stone will cover pipe.
Geo fabric will cover stone. 3"-" mulch (existing) will be
replaced over system.

 1  $181,550.00  $181,550.00Install-Concrete Site preparation for the installation of Concrete on the
slide hill for 3, 410 sq. ft using line pump.

General Conditions- Includes proper traffic control
measures, temporary lane closures, survey and
temporary facilities (portijohn) while we are out there.

Erosion Control- We will need to install and remove a
gravel construction entrance, wrap the site with Orange

C J Park PWCQ21531 Page  1
30



Qty Item # Description Unit Price Ext. Price

barrier fencing, and install some silt fence on the bottom
side to prevent any runoff.  I have also included inlet
protection out at the street because I know Newnan
requires it.  

Grading- Includes mobilization fees for the heavier
equipment, hauling for export of excavated material,
getting site on subgrade and prepped for the concrete
crew.  This will be a slow process due to the area and
the equipment we will be working around.  There will be a
good bit of handwork in here too around those stumps.  

 We will landscape the areas back that we disturb to
current conditions or better when we leave

 1  $68,185.00  $68,185.00PPRS Poured-In-Place Rubber Surfacing

Provide and install 3,410 sq. ft. of PIP at 4' CFH 50%
064 BLUE 50% BLACK with aromatic binder over
existing concrete. Inlay 14 circles. Install 2 swing safe
mats at slide exits, in the pour. Tie into existing bonded
rubber pour to the left when at the bottom facing the
slides.
180' of 12" curbs to ship separate.

Inlay 9 circles 50% 083 Bright Orange / 50% Black (300
sf ) Inlay 5 circles 50% 087 Bright Green / 50% Black 
(110 sf )

SubTotal  $263,868.00

Tax Rate  0.00 %

Sales Tax  $0.00

Shipping  $0.00

Total  $263,868.00
We appreciate the opportunity to work with you on this project.  

If this quotation does not meet your needs or expectations we will be happy to make any revisions necessary.

**Please contact your Playworld Preferred Sales Representative if any of the foregoing information is incorrect.**

**Order Acknowledgement will be sent within 48 hours after your Purchase Order has been processed.  Order Acknowledgement will
include the estimated Ship Date.  Shipping notification and documentation will be sent once the product ships.**

**Please note, due to market variables outside of our control, certain items such as commodity material price fluctuations, freight
surcharges, sales tax rates, and additionally requested re-consigned delivery location fees may change the final amount invoiced from the
amount originally provided on this quote. **

C J Park PWCQ21531 Page  2
31



Terms and Conditions

CONTROLLING TERMS:  THIS QUOTATION IS LIMITED TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS CONTAINED HEREIN. ANY ADDITIONAL OR DIFFERENT TERMS
PROPOSED BY CUSTOMER IN ANY PURCHASE ORDER OR OTHER DOCUMENTS ARE DEEMED TO BE MATERIAL ALTERATIONS AND NOTICE OF
OBJECTION TO THEM IS HEREBY GIVEN. ANY SUCH PROPOSED TERMS SHALL BE VOID, AND THE TERMS HEREIN SHALL CONSTITUTE THE COMPLETE
AND EXCLUSIVE STATEMENT OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE PARTIES. NEITHER SELLER'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF
A PURCHASE ORDER NOR SELLER'S FAILURE TO OBJECT TO CONFLICTING, DIFFERENT, OR ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS IN A PURCHASE
ORDER SHALL BE DEEMED AN ACCEPTANCE OF SUCH TERMS AND CONDITIONS OR A WAIVER OF THE PROVISIONS HEREOF.

PRICES: Prices in this Quote are good for thirty (30) days. Unless otherw ise stated in w riting, all prices are F.O.B. Origin, and shall be exclusive of
transportation, insurance, taxes, license fees, customs fees, duties, premiums, fees, site preparation, installation expenses and other charges, unless
specifically stated. Tax exempt Customers shall provide Playw orld Preferred w ith a copy of its valid tax-exempt certif icate at time the order is placed.

CANCELLATION:  Orders become final forty-eight (48) hours from Order Acknow ledgement.  Orders for play structures may NOT be cancelled or
returned under any circumstances.  Items w hich may be cancelled or returned are subject to a tw enty (20%) percent restocking fee, plus the cost of
return freight.  Returned items must be in original packaging, in new  condition, and returned w ithin thirty (30) days.  Authorization for the return must be
obtained in w riting from Playw orld Preferred.  Orders for products, other than those from Playw orld Systems, may NOT be cancelled or returned.

TERMS OF PAYMENT: For orders in an amount of $100 or less, payment in full is required at the time of the order.  For all other orders, a fifty (50%)
percent deposit is required, unless expressly w aived by Playw orld Preferred. (Orders from governmental entities are excluded from the deposit
requirement.)   A processing fee of 2.0% of the transaction amount w ill apply to all payments made by credit card (This is for all customers including
governmental entities).

UNLESS CREDIT IS SPECIFICALLY GRANTED IN WRITING BY PLAYWORLD PREFERRED, PAYMENT IN FULL IS DUE WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS OF INVOICE.
For orders w ithout installation, the invoice w ill be issued on the date the order ships.  For orders w hich include installation by Playw orld Preferred or its
authorized sub-contractor, the invoice w ill be issued upon the completion of the project.

WARRANTIES and DISCLAIMERS:  Manufacturers' limited w arranties are available upon request.

THE MANUFACTURER'S WARRANTY IS EXCLUSIVE AND IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, WHETHER
EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY WARRANTY OF CONDITION, DESCRIPTION, MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR
A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR NON-INFRINGEMENT OR ANY REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES IN ANY BROCHURES, MANUALS, CATALOGS,
LITERATURE OR OTHER MATERIALS OF PLAYWORLD PREFERRED.   FURTHER, NO REPRESENTATION, WHETHER ORAL OR WRITTEN, OF PLAYWORLD
PREFERRED MAY BE SUBSTITUTED OR ALTER THE EXCLUSIVE MANUFACTURER'S LIMITED WARRANTY.

LOSS or DAMAGE in TRANSIT: Playw orld Preferred is not responsible for loss or damage in transit. Our responsibility ends w hen the carrier signs the Bill
of Lading, w hich is our receipt that the products w ere complete and in good condition w hen shipped. It is the customer's responsibility to check the
number of pieces show n on the freight bill and our Bill of Lading. Any shortages or damages must be noted on the freight bill before it is signed.

DELIVERY: Delivery, shipment, and installation dates are estimates only, and do not guarantee shipment, delivery or installation on or by such dates.  If
shipment is made per the estimated ship date, and you are unable to accept delivery, then storage, demurrage or extra unloading charges may be
incurred and billed to your account

INSPECTION: All products must be inspected upon receipt, and claims must immediately be filed w ith the carrier and Playw orld Preferred w hen there is
evidence of shipping damage, either concealed or external.  All shipments are FOB Origin, unless quoted FOB Destination.  FOB Destination does not
change the terms of receiving and inspection of the products as set forth herein.

INSTALLATION: Installation is not included in the purchase price of the products, unless expressly noted on the quote and invoice.  IT IS CUSTOMER'S
RESPONSIBILITY TO ASSEMBLE, INSTALL AND USE THE PRODUCTS SAFELY AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION
INSTRUCTIONS, UNLESS EXPRESSLY AGREED OTHERWISE BY PLAYWORLD PREFERRED.

LIABILITY EXCLUSIONS: TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, PLAYWORLD PREFERRED SHALL NOT BE LIABLE IN CONNECTION WITH A PRODUCT OR
SERVICE FOR (A) ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, BASED ON TORT, CONTRACT OR OTHER LEGAL THEORY,
WHETHER OR NOT ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, OR (B) ANY DAMAGES WHATSOEVER IN EXCESS OF AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO
THE PURCHASE PRICE OF PRODUCT PROVEN TO BE DEFECTIVE.  THE RIGHT TO RECOVER DAMAGES WITHIN THE LIMITATIONS SPECIFIED IS
CUSTOMER'S EXCLUSIVE ALTERNATIVE REMEDY IN THE EVENT THAT THE REMEDY PROVIDED HEREIN FAILS OF ITS ESSENTIAL PURPOSE.

FORCE MAJEURE: Playw orld Preferred shall not be liable because of unforeseen circumstances or causes beyond its control, including, w ithout limitation,
strike, lockout, embargo, riot, w ar, act of terrorism, fire, act of God, accident, failure or breakdow n of components necessary for order completion,
subcontractor, supplier or Customer caused delays, inability to obtain labor, materials or manufacturing facilities, or compliance w ith any law , regulation or
order.

SAVINGS CLAUSE: If any part of the terms and conditions stated herein is held void or unenforceable, such part, to the extent void or unenforceable w ill
be treated as severable, leaving valid the remainder of the terms and conditions w hich shall be deemed revised so as to remain enforceable to the
greatest extent possible consistent w ith such holding.

C J Park PWCQ21531 Page  3
32



IF INSTALLATION IS INCLUDED WITH THIS ORDER, THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS APPLY:

SCHEDULE: Playw orld Preferred w ill provide Customer w ith a shipment and installation schedule.  Playw orld Preferred w ill take the commercially
reasonable steps necessary to complete installation on schedule and w ithout delay.  How ever, Playw orld Preferred does not guarantee the start or
completion of the project in strict accordance w ith the installation schedule provided.  Installation may be delayed by w eather conditions, f ire, Act(s) of
God or other casualty for w hich Playw orld Preferred is not responsible.

CHANGES: Playw orld Preferred reserves the right to change, modify or alter installation terms. INSTALLATION PRICE IS BASED ON NORMAL DIGGING
CONDITIONS.  IF ROCKS OR OTHER CONDITIONS AT THE SITE BEYOND THE CONTROL OF PLAYWORLD PREFERRED ARE ENCOUNTERED, THERE MAY
BE ADDITIONAL CHARGES.   If Playw orld Preferred deems a change is necessary, it w ill provide Customer w ith a Change Order request, including an
estimate of the commercially reasonable cost for the additional w ork required for proper installation of the equipment.  Playw orld Preferred w ill not
continue w ith the installation until approval of the Change Order in w riting by customer.  If Playw orld Preferred and Customer cannot agree upon the
additional cost for the extra w ork w ithin fifteen (15) days of the Change Order request, Playw orld Preferred may immediately invoice Customer for the
equipment, and Customer agrees to pay the equipment invoice in accordance w ith the payment terms set forth above (NET 10 days).

In the event that Customer requests changes to the installation or installation schedule w hich results in delays in excess of thirty (30) days, from the
date of the original installation schedule, Playw orld Preferred may immediately invoice Customer for the equipment, and Customer agrees to pay the
equipment invoice in accordance w ith the payment terms set forth above (NET 10 days).

UTILITIES:  Playw orld Preferred w ill locate and mark public utilities on the site.  Customer shall locate and mark any private utility lines, such as irrigation
lines or local telecommunication lines. Customer's failure to do this may result in damage to its private utility lines and costs associated thereto, and
additional installation charges and delays.

PERMITS:  Customer is responsible for the cost of all installation-related permits and fees not expressly included in the quotation.

REFUSE:  Trash and packaging materials w ill be consolidated and stacked neatly on Customer's site or placed in Customer's dumpster on site. Upon
customer's w ritten request, Playw orld Preferred w ill arrange for the trash and packaging materials to be removed from the site and disposed of for an
additional fee.

FINAL INSPECTION: Customer agrees to inspect the project w ith the lead installer and/or sales representative w ithin five (5) days of completion of the
project. If project has been satisfactorily completed, Customer w ill note acceptance of the project on Playw orld Preferred's Client Acceptance Form.
Playw orld Preferred w ill then invoice Customer, and Customer agrees to pay the invoice in accordance w ith the payment terms set forth above (NET 10
days). Signing the client acceptance form does not relieve Playw orld Preferred from its on going w arranty obligations as they relate to the product
shipped or installation w ork.

If Customer notes defects in the materials or w orkmanship ("punch list"), Playw orld Preferred w ill remedy them in a timely manner.  How ever, Playw orld
Preferred may immediately invoice Customer for the project, less ten (10%), and Customer agrees to pay the invoice in accordance w ith the payment
terms set forth above (NET 10 days).  Upon completion of the "punch list," Playw orld Preferred shall invoice Customer for the remaining ten (10%) due,
and Customer agrees to pay the invoice in accordance w ith the payment terms set forth above (NET 10 days).

SUPERVISED INSTALLATION:  In the event that Playw orld Preferred is contracted by Customer to supervise the installation of the equipment subject to
this Quotation, Customer shall complete Playw orld Preferred's "Supervised Installation Requirements" Form.  Said form sets forth the details of the
supervised build and the parties' respective responsibilities.  The Quotation may be subject to change based upon Customer's responses on the
"Supervised Installation Requirements" Form.  Within five (5) days of the completion of the supervised installation, the Parties shall comply w ith the FINAL
INSPECTION provisions set forth above.

I acknowledge that I have read, understand, and accept the terms and conditions of this quotation and that I am authorized to do so.

Print Name Customer PO #

Title

Signature Date

 Playworld Preferred Signature Date

Send Signed Quote & Deposit To:
Playworld Preferred
Attn: PWP Signed Quote c/o Playworld Systems
1000 Buffalo Road
Lewisburg, PA 17837

C J Park PWCQ21531 Page  4C J Park PWCQ21531 Page  4
33



 

City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 

Date: March 28, 2023 

Agenda 

Item: 

Consideration of Contract Award for Design Services for the 

Preservation and Improvement of the Farmer Street 

Cemetery 

Prepared and 

Presented 

By: 

Hasco Craver, Assistant City Manager 

 

 
Purpose:  

Newnan City Council may consider and award a contract for a qualified firm to perform Design Services 

for the Preservation and Improvement of the Farmer Street Cemetery. 

Background:  

The Newnan City Council, in late 2020, reconstituted the Farmer Street Cemetery Commission with a charge of 

planning for the protection, preservation, promotion and maintenance of the Farmer Street Cemetery located along 

Farmer Street. 

In early 2021, the commission began meeting to discuss near and long-term objectives.  In addition to discussing 

objectives, the commission considered existing documents that provided details surrounding previous surveying 

of the site.  As a result of numerous commission meetings, including a public information gathering session held 

in the fall of 2021, as well as a review of existing documents, the commission recognized the need to perform an 

up-to-date survey of the site, a more thorough literature review of available documents and a ground penetrating 

radar survey of the site.   

The City of Newnan engaged PaleoWest to perform surveying, GPR and literature review services.  

PaleoWest presented their findings and the associated report, dated August 2022, to the Newnan City 

Council in the fall of 2022.   

The Farmer Street Cemetery Commission, as a result of completing the survey, GPR and literature 

review, considered an opportunity to solicit for and engage a professional firm to support the development 

of design documents that will, in time, inform certain improvements that may be considered at the Farmer 

Street Cemetery. 

The City of Newnan issued a Request for Proposals to perform Design Services for the Preservation and 

Improvement of the Farmer Street cemetery in late 2022.  The City of Newnan received one (1) proposal 

from Pond & Company in early 2023. 

Pond & Company 

3500 Parkway Lane 

Suite 500 

Peachtree Corners, GA 30092 

 

34



The Farmer Street Cemetery Commission interviewed Pond & Company staff members, Andrew Kohr 

and Sydney Thompson at their March 6, 2023 meeting.  During the interview, a project approach that 

included phasing of certain activities was considered.  As a result of the interview, the Farmer Street 

Cemetery Commission voted unanimously to recommend to the Newnan City Council that the City of 

Newnan formally engage Pond & Company to perform Phase I of the project to include the following 

activities: existing conditions assessment and schematic design services.  The first phase will also include 

community engagement sessions.   

It is the hope of the commission that the phase I activities will result in a more precise understanding of 

future improvements.  If satisfied with the potential future improvements, the city may engage Pond & 

Company to perform full design and project administrative services.   

Phase I of the proposal includes the following: 

Survey       $18,500.00 (may decrease) 

Existing Conditions & Schematic Design  $34,150.00 

Expenses      $750.00 

Phase I TOTAL     $53,400.00 

 

Funding:  

1. General Fund 

 

Recommendation:  

The recommendation herein is primarily based upon the following elements: 

 Firm’s responsiveness; and 

 Firm’s experience conducting similar services; and 

 Firms’ submitted price 

 

The Farmer Street Cemetery Commission met on March 6, 2023 to interview Pond & Company.  The 

commission, in accordance with the conversation description contained herein, voted unanimously to select Pond 

& Company for Phase I scope of work for an amount not to exceed $53,400.00.  

Attachments:  

1. Sections of the Pond & Company proposal 

        

Previous Discussions with Council:  

From time to time, Newnan City Council receives updates related to the work of the Farmer Street 

Cemetery Commission.    

 

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



  

City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 

Date: March 28, 2023 

Agenda Item: Consideration of a contract extension for Debris Removal 
Services 

Prepared By: Ray Norton, Public Works Director 

 

 
Purpose:    
 
Newnan City Council may consider a 1-year contract extension to Southern Disaster Recovery’s (SDR) 
existing contract for Debris Removal Services.  
 
Background:   
 
On April 7, 2021 the City of Newnan issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Debris Removal Services 
after Newnan was impacted by an EF4 tornado that effected numerous public and private properties.  
 
The RFP contemplated an initial term of one (1) year with an option to renew for four (4) consecutive 
one (1) year periods under the same terms and conditions. 
 
On May 11, 2021 a contract was awarded to Southern Disaster Recovery for Debris Removal Services.  
 
On April 12, 2022 a 1 year extension was awarded to Southern Disaster Recovery for Debris Removal 
Services.  
 
Southern Disaster Recovery, LLC  
109 White Oak Rd 
Greenville SC 29609  
 
Please note that the subject contract C Debris Removal Services Services is for “on-call” purposes and 
will only be utilized in the event of an emergency. 
 
Funding:  
 

1. N/A 
  

Attachment:    
 

1. Contract Extension Agreement 
 
Recommendation:  
 
City Staff recommends that the Newnan City Council consider extending the current contract with 
Southern Disaster Recovery for one (1) year.  
 
Previous Discussion with Council: 

43



109 White Oak Rd. Greenville, SC 29609     Office 864-469-9776   Fax 864-469-9642 

www.gosdr.com 

Contract Extension Agreement #2 

This Extension Agreement, made and entered into this __30th ___ day of 
APRIL______, 2023 by and between CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA hereinafter 
termed the “Owner”, and SDR, hereinafter termed the “Contractor”. 

WITNESSETH   

WHEREAS, the parties entered into a certain Contract Agreement for Disaster Debris 
Removal Services on the __30TH__ day of __APRIL____, ___2021___.    

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the Contract Agreement in 
accordance with the terms of the Contract Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the 
parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. The parties agree to extend the term of the Contract Agreement for a period of
_1 year(s), which shall be from the extension effective date to _APRIL 29, 2024.

2. This extension Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
parties, their successors, and personal representatives. This document, including
the original Contract Agreement, is the entire agreement between the parties.

All other terms and conditions of the original Contract Agreement remain unchanged. 

CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA   SDR 

By:  __________________________   By:  __________________________ 

Title: _________________________   Title: _________________________ 

Date:  ________________________   Date:  ________________________ 

44

http://www.southerndr.com/


  

City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 

Date: March 28, 2023 

Agenda Item: Consideration of a contract extension for Debris Monitoring, 
Disaster Recovery and Emergency Planning Services 

Prepared By: Ray Norton, Public Works Director 

 

 
Purpose:    
 
Newnan City Council may consider a 1-year contract extension to Goodwin Mills & Cawood’s (GMC) 
existing contract for Debris Monitoring, Disaster Recovery and Emergency Planning Services.  
 
Background:   
 
On April 7, 2021 the City of Newnan issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Debris Monitoring, Disaster 
Recovery and Emergency Planning Services after Newnan was impacted by an EF4 tornado that effected 
numerous public and private properties.  
 
The RFP contemplated an initial term of one (1) year with an option to renew for four (4) consecutive 
one (1) year periods under the same terms and conditions. 
 
On May 11, 2021 a contract was awarded to Goodwin Mills & Cawood for Debris Monitoring, Disaster 
Recovery and Emergency Planning Services.  
 
On April 12, 2022 a 1 year extension was awarded to Goodwin Mills & Cawood for Debris Monitoring, 
Disaster Recovery and Emergency Planning Service. 
 
Goodwin Mills & Cawood 
6120 Powers Ferry Rd NW 
Suite 200 
Atlanta Ga  
 
Please note that the subject contract for Debris Monitoring, Disaster Recovery and Emergency Planning 
Services is for “on-call” purposes and will only be utilized in the event of an emergency. 
 
Funding:  
 

1. N/A 
  

Attachment:    
 

1. April 7, 2021 RFP 
2. Amendment to the Debris Monitoring Services Agreement  

 
Recommendation:  
 

45



City Staff recommends that the Newnan City Council consider extending the current contract with 
Goodwin Mills & Cawood for one (1) year.  
 
Previous Discussion with Council: 
 
Newnan City Councill, in April 2021, awarded a contract for Debris Monitoring, Disaster Recovery and 
Emergency Planning Services to Goodwin, Mills & Cawood. 
 

46



AMENDMENT TO THE DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
This agreement is between the City of Newnan (City) and Goodwyn Mills Cawood, LLC (GMC).  
 
 Whereas the City and GMC entered into a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) dated May 11, 2021. 
 
The City and GMC hereby agree to amend the PSA as follows: 
 
The agreement dated May 11, 2021 is for (1) year with the option to renew for four (4) consecutive one (1) year 
periods. This amendment is to renew the current contract for a third one (1) year period beginning May 11, 2023 
and ending May 10, 2024 under the same terms and conditions. 
 
 
 
The Parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the date set forth below. 
 
 
 
 
 

GOODWYN MILLS CAWOOD, LLC 
 
 

Date: _March 10___, 2023   By:        
Robert Ramsey 
Title: Executive Vice President, Disaster Recovery 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Date: ______________, 2023   By:        
  
Print name: Keith Brady 
  
Title: Mayor 

 
 

 

47

RNorton
Typewritten text
City Of Newnan



  

City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 

Date: March 28, 2023 

Agenda Item: Consideration of a contract extension for Consulting Services 
for Disaster Recovery and FEMA Public Assistance 

Prepared By: Ray Norton, Public Works Director 

 

 
Purpose:    
 
Newnan City Council may consider a 1-year contract extension to Goodwin Mills & Cawood’s (GMC) 
existing contract for Consulting Services for Disaster Recovery and FEMA Public Assistance.  
 
Background:   
 
On April 7, 2021 the City of Newnan issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Consulting Services for 
Disaster Recovery and FEMA Public Assistance after Newnan was impacted by an EF4 tornado that 
effected numerous public and private properties.  
 
The RFP contemplated an initial term of one (1) year with an option to renew for four (4) consecutive 
one (1) year periods under the same terms and conditions. 
 
On May 11, 2021 a contract was awarded to Goodwin Mills & Cawood for Debris Monitoring, Disaster 
Recovery and Emergency Planning Services. 
 
On April 12, 2022 a 1 year extension was awarded to Goodwin Mills & Cawood for Debris Monitoring, 
Disaster Recovery and Emergency Planning Services. 
 
 
Goodwin Mills & Cawood 
6120 Powers Ferry Rd NW 
Suite 200 
Atlanta Ga  
 
Please note that the subject contract Consulting Services for Disaster Recovery and FEMA Public 
Assistance Services is for “on-call” purposes and will only be utilized in the event of an emergency. 
 
Funding:  
 

1. FEMA  
2. General Fund  

 
Attachment:    
 

1. Contract dated May 11, 2021 
 
Recommendation:  

48



 
City Staff recommends that the Newnan City Council consider extending the current contract with 
Goodwin Mills & Cawood for one (1) year.  
 
Previous Discussion with Council: 
 
Newnan City Councill, in April 2021, awarded a contract for Consulting Services for Disaster Recovery 
and FEMA Public Assistance Services to Goodwin, Mills & Cawood. 
 

49



AMENDMENT TO THE DISASTER RECOVER & FEMA PUBLIC ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 
 
This agreement is between the City of Newnan (City) and Goodwyn Mills Cawood, LLC (GMC).  
 
 Whereas the City and GMC entered into a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) dated May 11, 2021. 
 
The City and GMC hereby agree to amend the PSA as follows: 
 
The agreement dated May 11, 2021 is for (1) year with the option to renew for four (4) consecutive one (1) year 
periods. This amendment is to renew the current contract for a third one (1) year period beginning May 11, 2023 
and ending May 10, 2024 under the same terms and conditions. 
 
 
 
The Parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the date set forth below. 
 
 
 
 
 

GOODWYN MILLS CAWOOD, LLC 
 
 

Date: _March 10______, 2023   By:        
Robert Ramsey 
Title: Executive Vice President, Disaster Recovery 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF NEWNAN 
 
 

Date: ______________, 2023   By:        
  
Print name: Keith Brady 
  
Title: Mayor 

 
 

 

50



 

City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 

Date: March 28, 2023 

Agenda 

Item: 

Proposal to Repair and Maintain erosion at 57 East    

Prepared By: Cleatus Phillips 

 

 
Purpose: Proposal to repair and maintain erosion at 57 East.  

 

Background:  After demolition and remediation at 57 East, the site has experienced some erosion issues that 

need to be addressed as soon as possible.  Staff requested that our Program Manager, Eric Johnson, develop a 

solution.  Mr. Johnson contacted New South Construction to act as a Construction Manager and requested they 

solicit a minimum of bids from grading contractors.   New South received three bids from: 

 Southeastern Sitework  $101,850 

 Collins Sitework  $250,000 

 RD Jones   $117,021 

 

Funding:   General Fund 

 

 

Recommendation:   
 

It is recommended that we accept the proposal from New South as presented. 

 

Previous Discussion with Council:  None 

 

 

Attachments:   
 

 Proposal from New South 

 Email from Eric Johnson 

51



NEW SOUTH CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. 

1180 WEST PEACHTREE STREET SUITE 700, ATLANTA, GA  30309, 

(404) 443-4000, FAX (404) 443-4100

March 20, 2023 

Mr. Cleatus Philips 

City of Newnan 

25 LaGrange Street 

Newnan, GA 30263 

Re: 57 East Sitework 

Cleatus, 

New South Construction is pleased to submit the following proposal for the work at the above 

noted location.  The scope was developed from a site meeting with Eric Johnson and a local 

sitework subcontractor on 2/8/23.  For the lump sum price of One Hundred One Thousand 

Eight Hundred Fifty ($101,850.00) Dollars, New South proposes to furnish all supervision, 

labor, materials, incidentals, and construction services to perform the following scope of work: 

Scope of work includes but is not limited to: 

• Erosion control check dam (3)

• Construct and remove temporary sediment trap (2)

• Temporary silt fence (+/-2,000lf)

• Diversion ditches / berms (+/-3 acres)

• Regrade slope / site

• City to provide topsoil to cover M-10 for slope stabilization as needed

• Import or export is excluded

• All maintenance of erosion control once we demobilize is by others

• Management and supervision as required

Bid tabulation: 

Southeastern Sitework $101,850.00 

Collins Sitework $250,000.00 ++ 

RD Jones $117,021.00 

52



 

 

NEW SOUTH CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. 

1180 WEST PEACHTREE STREET SUITE 700, ATLANTA, GA  30309,  

(404) 443-4000, FAX (404) 443-4100 
 

 

 

 

If you have any questions or require further information, please call.   

 

Best Regards, 

 

NEW SOUTH CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 

 
 
  
Rob Ragan 

VP - Operations 

53



From: Eric Johnson
To: Cleatus Phillips
Cc: Hasco Craver; Jalen Johnson
Subject: FW: 57 West Sitework
Date: Tuesday, March 21, 2023 10:20:16 AM
Attachments: image001.png

57 West Proposal.pdf

Good morning,
 
Please find a letter from Rob Ragan with New South Construction for permanent Erosion Control at
57 East. They received (3) bids of which they would recommend moving forward with the Low
Bidder, Southeastern Sitework. CPS walked the site with both New South and Southeastern, so we
are comfortable that they understand the scope required on this site. With this, we would
recommend the City to move forward with New South Construction (with Southeastern Sitework) in
the amount of $101,850.00. We believe once given approval, they can start immediately and will
coordinate all their efforts with Ray Norton who will be provided dirt as well.
 
Thanks and please let us know of any questions/concerns.
Eric
 
ERIC JOHNSON
Comprehensive Program Services 
3368 Hardee Avenue
Atlanta, Georgia 30341
M: 404-931-6485
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/a6024ccf/zg1gv89x302llGuUanG-
Ow?u=http://www.cps-atlanta.com/

 
 

From: Rob Ragan <RRAGAN@newsouthconstruction.com> 
Sent: Monday, March 20, 2023 4:03 PM
To: Eric Johnson <ejohnson@cps-atlanta.com>
Subject: 57 West Sitework
 
Eric,
 
I reached out to three sitework contractors for competitive pricing on the 57 West site.  Of the
three, two were competitive and one was way off base (see attached).  Southeastern is the
contractor we need to go with.
 
Sorry it took so long, I did my best to make the job apples to apples with each contractor.  As
discussed on our call earlier, Collins was way off and his response was verbal.
 
See attached proposal, let me know if we need discuss in more detail.
 

54








 


 


NEW SOUTH CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. 


1180 WEST PEACHTREE STREET SUITE 700, ATLANTA, GA  30309,  


(404) 443-4000, FAX (404) 443-4100 
 


 
 


 


March 20, 2023 


 


Mr. Cleatus Philips 


City of Newnan 


25 LaGrange Street 


Newnan, GA 30263 


 


 


Re: 57 West Sitework  


 


Cleatus, 


 


New South Construction is pleased to submit the following proposal for the work at the above 


noted location.  The scope was developed from a site meeting with Eric Johnson and a local 


sitework subcontractor on 2/8/23.  For the lump sum price of One Hundred One Thousand 


Eight Hundred Fifty ($101,850.00) Dollars, New South proposes to furnish all supervision, 


labor, materials, incidentals, and construction services to perform the following scope of work: 


 
Scope of work includes but is not limited to: 


• Erosion control check dam (3) 


• Construct and remove temporary sediment trap (2) 


• Temporary silt fence (+/-2,000lf) 


• Diversion ditches / berms (+/-3 acres) 


• Regrade slope / site 


• City to provide topsoil to cover M-10 for slope stabilization as needed 


• Import or export is excluded 


• All maintenance of erosion control once we demobilize is by others 


• Management and supervision as required 


 


Bid tabulation: 


Southeastern Sitework $101,850.00 


Collins Sitework  $250,000.00 ++ 


RD Jones   $117,021.00 


 


 


 


 







 


 


NEW SOUTH CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. 


1180 WEST PEACHTREE STREET SUITE 700, ATLANTA, GA  30309,  


(404) 443-4000, FAX (404) 443-4100 
 


 


 


 


If you have any questions or require further information, please call.   


 


Best Regards, 


 


NEW SOUTH CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 


 
 
  
Rob Ragan 


VP - Operations 





mailto:ejohnson@cps-atlanta.com
mailto:CPhillips@newnanga.gov
mailto:hcraver@newnanga.gov
mailto:jjohnson@cps-atlanta.com
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/a6024ccf/zg1gv89x302llGuUanG-Ow?u=http://www.cps-atlanta.com/
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/a6024ccf/zg1gv89x302llGuUanG-Ow?u=http://www.cps-atlanta.com/


Thanks,
 
Rob
 
Rob Ragan
Vice President
 

 
1180 West Peachtree St | Suite 700  | Atlanta, GA 30309 
O: (404)443-4000 | C: (678) 618-2091

55

https://link.edgepilot.com/s/c61d8e12/F_7Hw7DuokiZKLr_t5tJFA?u=https://www.newsouthconstruction.com/


City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
   Date: March 28, 2023  
 
   Agenda Item: 31 Jones St 
  
   Prepared and Presented by: 
   Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
   Submitted by: Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 
 
 
 

Purpose:      To conduct a public hearing concerning the dilapidated structure located 
at 31 Jones St.  

 
 
Background:  Owner: Willie Allen & Dennis Montgomery 
 
                                    Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: November 15, 2021 
   Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 

exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES  
 
On January 11, 2023 the Building department conducted an inspection of 
the premises. The structure has been determined to be unsafe as set 
forth by City Ordinance Section 5-24 (a), Sub-sections (3,4,5,6,8,9,10).   

 
 
 
Options:              

1. Adopt a resolution directing the property owner to either repair or 
demolish the structure within forty-five (45) days.  

2. Other direction from Council. 
 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 1. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council:            
 
January 20, 2023 - Council informed of conditions.  
 
February 14, 2023 – Public Hearing was requested.   
 
 
    

 

 

 

 
56



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

57



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

58



 

City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 

Date: March 28, 2023 

Agenda 

Item: 

Recommendation regarding the public sale of 66 1st Avenue 

and 10 Buchanan Street.    

Prepared By: Cleatus Phillips 

 

 
Purpose: Recommendation regarding the public sale of 66 1st Avenue and 10 Buchanan Street.    

 

Background:  On March 14, 2023, Council voted to declare these two lots as surplus but requested that staff 

report back and recommend a process for the public sale of these two lots.  OCGA 36-37-6 regulates the sale 

of municipal owned property.   For any lot that is ‘buildable’, the property must be sold to the highest bidder 

either through a sealed bid or public auction process 

Funding:   n/a 

 

Recommendation:   
 

66 1st Avenue 

This lot is approximately 60’ in width which is certainly buildable.  However, staff is uncertain of the 

current encroachments from adjoining properties and/or other improvements which may impact the 

ability to ‘build’ on the property.  Staff recommends that the property be surveyed and if the property 

is determined to be buildable, we advertise for sealed bids with the minimum bid starting at $5,000.  If 

the property is determined to be ‘non-buildable’, staff recommends that we offer the property to 

adjoining property owners (there are four in total) and then divide the property equally to each of the 

interested property owners at a cost to recoup our fees for survey and closing costs.   

 

10 Buchanan 

This property is certainly unbuildable and has no street frontage, therefore can be offered to adjoining 

property owners per OCGA(g).  There are two (2) properties that directly abut and a third property that 

is separated by the old alleyway.  I mention the third property because there have been instances on this 

particular alley where the adjoining property owners have filed ‘quiet title’ actions to gain title to the 

alley and this third property owner could technically do the same.  Staff recommends that we solicit 

sealed bids to ONLY the three adjoining property owners with a minimum starting bid of $1,000.   The 

property isn’t positioned well to divide it three ways.   If the highest bidder is the property that would 

require ‘quiet title’ of the alley, that owner must complete such action prior to closing of the property.  

 

Previous Discussion with Council:  March 14, 2023 

 

59



 
 

 

60



 
 

 

61



 

City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 

Date: March 28, 2023 

Agenda 

Item: 

Report on Annexation and Development Planning – Action 

Item Requested at City Council 2022 Retreat  

Prepared By: Tracy S. Dunnavant, Planning Director 

 

 
Purpose:  To provide information that will assist the City Council in creating a strategy for future 

annexations and development planning. 

Background:  At their August 2022 retreat, the City Council approved 5 action items in the areas of 

annexation and development planning that they wanted to see addressed in the future.  Those items are as 

follows: 

1. Research and collect land use data to develop policies/planning tools to maintain and attract 

single family homes; and 

2. Research and collect “annexation plans” from other jurisdictions; and  

3. Host future work session dedicated to discussing a “growth strategy”; and  

4. Allow flexibility for smaller square footage requirements for infill residential development; 

and 

5. Continue discussing larger single-family structures to develop a strategy to attract higher 

quality development 

 

Staff has provided information to assist Council as they determine what, if any, action should be taken.  

Information provided includes annexation plans/agreements from several jurisdictions, maps and 

  
Funding:   N/A  

 

Recommendation:  N/A 

 

Previous Discussion with Council:  August 2022 Council Retreat 

 

demographic information (regarding available land, location and type of residential uses, and owner vs. 

rental occupied rates), and housing tools used by other cities. 

62



Annexation Plans 

In looking at potential ways to plan for annexation, staff found several tools that other jurisdictions are using in 
an effort to work with their counties.  I have included three examples and provided a brief summary of each 
below.  

• Cherokee County – Adopted a growth boundary agreement resolution with various cities within their 
county that does the following: 
 
- Establishes a growth boundary map. 
- The two entities agree to align character areas and land use plans with the agreed upon growth 

boundary area. 
- Spells out protocols for both entities to work together within the growth boundary area 
- Parcels within the growth boundary are not automatically eligible for annexation as they still must 

meet state law requirements. 
- The resolution runs concurrently with the Service Delivery Strategy. 
- The agreement also addresses unincorporated pockets within the city limits. 
- In addition to the resolution, there is also a memorandum of understanding establishing 

coordination and communication protocols for the growth boundary area. 
 

• There are several states that require jurisdictions to adopt an “annexation policy plan” which guides the 
City’s future growth and expansion through annexation of unincorporated lands adjacent to their cities.  
The goal is to ensure cooperation between the cities and counties in their planning processes.  Some of 
these states are Texas, Utah, Washington and Colorado.  These plans typically include a map of areas 
where future growth should be targeted based on availability of services, existing land uses, the 
existing transportation system, etc.  Once the plan is developed, there is a public hearing process that 
allows for comment.  It should be noted that the plans are usually advisory, adopted by resolution and 
have no enforcement provisions.  They typically are updated either annually or in accordance with the 
Comprehensive Plan’s amendment requirements.  They simply act as a guide to use when making 
annexation decisions. 

 

• Carroll County Maryland actually goes a step further in ensuring cooperation with its cities.   The 
County assigns a staff liaison to the municipal planning commissions.  The staff attends the monthly 
Planning Commission meetings and provides an update on the County’s Planning Department activities.  
They also review proposed development projects in the municipalities for consistency with existing 
growth strategies and applicable plans. 
 
In terms of their annexation process, all municipalities within Carroll County submit their annexation 
packets to the County for review and comment.  The County has 60 days to review and produce a 
“comment letter”.  If the proposed municipal zoning is substantially different in use or has a 
development density of greater than 50% of the original county zoning, then a zoning waiver is 
required from the County Board of Commissioners.  If the Board denies the waiver, the annexation can 
still move forward, but the annexed area cannot be rezoned for 5 years.       

 

 

63



Mapping Tools 

In an effort to assist Council in their planning efforts, Staff has provided the following maps and demographic 
materials: 

1) Residential Development Map that shows uses by category (apartments, assisted living facilities, 
single-family homes and townhomes. 

2) Large tracts of vacant residential zoned land exceeding 10 acres within the city limits. 

 

Housing Tools 

Infill Housing – Smaller Square Footages: 

In terms of infill development, the City currently uses the averages in the RU-I district to determine dimensional 
requirements.  Minimum principal living space is determined by the average home square footage for the block 
within which the property lies.  RU-I is the only zoning designation that uses averages to determine dimensional 
requirements.  This is not the case for lots in older neighborhoods within the RS-15, RU-7 or RU-2 zoning districts.  
It should be noted that the City does allow staff to grant a 20% administrative variance to further reduce the 
house size if warranted in all residential zoning districts.  The builder can also seek a variance from the Board of 
Zoning appeals if they want more than 20%. 

Incentives and Tax Abatement Programs: 

One way that jurisdictions have addressed housing needs is by offering various incentives.  Some use property 
tax abatements that lower the amount of taxes owed for a specific period of time or property tax incentives that 
are structed to exempt increases in the assessed value of a property, again for a period of time, that would 
otherwise result from new construction or rehabilitation of older homes.   These incentives are provided as a 
way of encouraging developers to build certain products or develop in areas where they would like to see 
redevelopment occur. 

The City of Cincinnati’s tax abatement program allows owners to pay taxes on the pre-improvement value of the 
property for 10-15 years.  The tax abatement stays with the property the entire length of the abatement and 
transfers to any new property owner within the approved time frame.  The program is limited to new 
construction of condos, one, two, three or four-unit residential structures.  They have a minimum amount of 
money that must be spent on the structure(s) and the structure must pass an exterior inspection prior to the 
owner receiving the abatement.  The City also offers a bonus on top of the abatement term for the restoration of 
historic properties.  The bonus does not apply to additions made to historic homes. 

Some jurisdictions have adopted inclusionary zoning programs to address affordability issues.  These programs 
require developers to set aside a certain percentage of units for residents with incomes at or below a certain 
percentage of area median income (AMI).  The City of Atlanta has such a program, which also includes a 
payment of in lieu of fees option.  A brief summary of their requirements is as follows: 

3) City of Newnan Rental vs. Owner Occupied percentages from 1950 – 2020. 
4) Comparison Rates for other cities (rent vs. own).

64



  

Montgomery County, Maryland also requires 12.5 percent of all new residential units in every subdivision or 
high-rise building to be affordable.  That percentage rises to 15 percent for projects that take advantage of the 
County’s density bonus program.  The density increase is up to 22 percent above the normal density permitted 
under the zone.  The County does impose certain resale and occupancy restrictions for those receiving the 
bonus. 

Many jurisdictions have used housing requirements or building design elements such as minimum square 
footages, type or style of exterior building materials, increased lot sizes, number of rooms, etc. to enhance 
housing products.  However, there is a push in the State Legislature to prohibit these types of requirements for 
one and two-family dwellings.  HB 517, know as the “Georgia Homeowner Opportunity Act”, did not pass 
crossover day; however, it’s purpose was to “prohibit local governments from adopting or enforcing ordinances 
or regulations relating to or regulating building design elements as applied to one or two family dwellings.”  It 
should be noted that the bill did not apply to dwellings in historic districts and does not apply to dwellings with 
over two units.   If passed, this bill would have impacted our current ordinance and limit the requirements the 
City could put on future rezonings and annexations for one and two family developments.  While this type of 
legislation did not move forward this year,  it will more than likely be reintroduced in the future as there is a push 
to make housing more affordable. 

65



Comparison Cities for Rent vs. Own – 2020 Census  
 

 

Newnan  

Rent – 44.1% 

Own – 55.9% 

 

Cartersville  

Rent – 43% 

Own – 57% 

 

Fairburn  

Rent – 45% 

Own – 55% 

 

Smyrna  

Rent – 44% 

Own – 56% 

 

Warner Robins  

Rent – 48% 

Own – 52% 

 

Canton  

Rent – 48% 

Own - 52% 

 

Marietta  

Rent – 54% 

Own – 46% 

 

Gainesville  

Rent – 57% 

Own – 43% 

 

Cumming  

Rent – 58% 

Own – 42% 

 

Madison  

Rent – 53% 

Own – 47% 

 

McDonough  

Rent – 50% 

Own – 50% 

 

 

College Park  

Rent – 75% 

Own – 25% 

 

Conyers  

Rent – 65% 

Own – 35% 

 

Jonesboro  

Rent – 69% 

Own – 31% 

 

Douglasville  

Rent – 53% 

Own – 47% 

 

LaGrange  

Rent – 61% 

Own – 39% 

 

Carrollton 

Rent – 59% 

Own – 41% 

 

Griffin 

Rent – 63% 

Own – 37% 

 

Fayetteville 

Rent – 31% 

Own – 69% 

 

Peachtree City  

Rent – 27% 

Own – 73% 

 

Covington  

Rent – 57% 

Own – 43% 

 

Rome 

Rent – 51% 

Own – 49% 

 
 

66



1950 1960 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010 2020
Total Number of Housing Units 2,503                       3,716                       3,771                       4,315                       4,986                       6,464                       14,088                    15,879                    

Unit Occupancy Percentages
Owner 48.4% 58.4% 54.4% 54.5% 47.9% 46.8% 53.4% 55.9%
Renter 51.6% 41.6% 45.6% 45.5% 52.1% 53.2% 46.6% 44.1%

Occupied Housing Units 2,449                       3,501                       3,583                       4,084                       4,634                       5,939                       12,439                    15,234                    
Owner 1,185                       2,043                       1,949                       2,227                       2,221                       2,779                       6,647                       8,516
Renter 1,264                       1,458                       1,634                       1,857                       2,413                       3,160                       5,792                       6,718

Vacant Housing Units 54                            215                          188                          231                          352                          525                          1,649                       645                          

Decennial Census Years

67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
March 21, 2023 
 
 
Dear Council Members, 
 
I am writing on behalf of both Explore Newnan-Coweta and the Newnan-Coweta Chamber of 
Commerce to request the use of the City Trolley for the tourism portion of 2023’s Leadership 
Coweta class on Tuesday, April 11th from 8:00am until 2:30pm.  
 
The purpose of this day is to showcase not only the economic impact that tourism has for our 
county but also our assets, how we market the community and measurements in place to determine 
ROI. The class of 25 will embark on a FAM tour (familiarization) of the county which includes the 
proposed itinerary: 
 
- Begin in Newnan w/ guided driving tour of historic districts + courthouse 
- Continue downtown tour past The HOP, McRitchie-Hollis & Oak Hill Cemetery 
- Drive to 180 Degree Farm for on-site tour 
- Driving tour thru Turin/Sharpsburg 
- Tour of Senoia Raceway 
- Film tour in Senoia 
- Lunch 
- Drive back to Newnan 
 
Utilizing the trolley will not allow the entire class to enjoy a guided and more in-depth tour while 
remaining together, but also highlight a unique asset our community has while marketing it to the 
very audience that would use it in the future. In addition to that, seeing the trolley around the 
county will grow awareness of its availability.  
 
As ENCI is spearheading the planning of this day, our office will cover any necessary costs for the 
use of the trolley.  
 
Thank you! 
 
 
Heather Daniel, President & CEO 
Explore Newnan-Coweta 
heather@explorenewnancoweta.com 
 

182



Motion to Enter into Executive Session 
 
I move that we now enter into closed session as allowed by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4 and 
pursuant to advice by the City Attorney, for the purpose of discussing  
 
 
And that we, in open session, adopt a resolution authorizing and directing the Mayor or 
presiding officer to execute an affidavit in compliance with O.C.G.A. §50-14-4, and that 
this body ratify the actions of the Council taken in closed session and confirm that the 
subject matters of the closed session were within exceptions permitted by the open 
meetings law. 
 
 

Motion to Adopt Resolution after Adjourning Back into Regular Session 
 
I move that we adopt the resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the affidavit stating 
that the subject matter of the closed portion of the council meeting was within the 
exceptions provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4(b). 
 

183


	Top
	A.	Minutes 2/22/23 Special Called
	2.22.23 Special called meeting minutes

	B.	Minutes 3/14/23
	3.14.23 Minutes

	C.	1 Appt - CAC
	D.	1 Appt - KNB
	E.	1 Appt - Parks
	F.	1 Appt - Tree
	G.	1 Appt - YA
	H.	Public Hearing - Request by owner to demolish of structure more than 50 years old.
	282 Greenville St Agenda Packet

	I.	Contract for CJ Smith Slide
	City Council Agenda Item 3-28-2023 (Consideration of Contract for C. Jay Smith Slope Repair)
	Playworld Quote for CJ Smith Park

	J.	FSC  Contract Award
	Cover for FSC Contract Award
	POND  Company Proposal Pages

	K.	Contract Extension
	Derbis Removal Contract Extension Agenda Item Debris2.28.23 - Copy
	Contract_Extension #2_NEWNAN.GA

	L.	Contract Extension GMC
	GMC Contract Extension Agenda Item Debris Mon_
	Amendment to Contract GMC #2

	M.	Contract Extension GMC for PA
	GMC Contract Extension Agenda Item PA
	Amendment to Contract #2 (003)

	N.	Erosion at 57 East
	Agenda Cover 57 East Erosion
	57 East Proposal
	FW_ 57 East Sitework

	O.	Public Hearing - 31 Jones St - Resolution to Repair or Demolish.
	31 Jones St -Public Hearing

	P.	Surplus property
	Agenda Cover Surplus Lots 3.28.23

	Q.	Council Retreat Action Item Report - Annexation and Development Planning
	Plan Info and Housing Demo
	Mapping Information
	Cherokee County Annex Docs
	Colorado Springs Annex Docs
	Carroll County Maryland Annex Docs

	R.	Redistricting ordinances
	Charter w_20230228153057
	Ordinance for Redistricting

	S.	Fresh Bru Drive
	Fresh bru aerial

	T.	ENCI Request Trolley
	ENCI-TrolleyRequest-3-21-23

	U.	Executive Session
	Motion to Enter into Executive Session

	Bottom

